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Priority 

Proposed Priority 
Under this proposed priority, grantees 

must ‘‘scale up’’ and evaluate models 
designed to increase the number of 
students from underrepresented groups 
who, through gifted and talented 
education programs, perform at high 
levels of academic achievement. 

For this priority, ‘‘scaling up’’ means 
to expand a program with demonstrated 
effectiveness at one level (such as a 
school or other educational setting, 
student population, grade level, or 
academic subject area) for use in 
broader settings or with different 
populations. With regard to this 
priority, underrepresented groups refer 
to the following three groups of 
students: Economically disadvantaged 
individuals, individuals with limited 
English proficiency, and individuals 
with disabilities. 

To meet this priority, applicants must 
include all of the following in their 
applications: 

(1) Evidence from one or more 
scientifically based research and 
evaluation studies indicating that the 
proposed intervention has raised the 
achievement of students from one or 
more underrepresented groups in one or 
more core subject areas. 

(2) Evidence from one or more 
scientifically based research and 
evaluation studies that the proposed 
intervention has resulted in increased 
numbers of students from 
underrepresented groups who are 
prepared to participate in gifted and 
talented education programs. 

(3) Evidence that the applicant has 
significant expertise on its leadership 
team in each of the following areas: 
Research and program evaluation, 
content knowledge in one or more core 
academic subject areas, working with 
underrepresented groups, and gifted and 
talented education. 

(4) A sound plan for implementing 
the model in multiple settings or with 
multiple populations. 

(5) A research and evaluation plan 
that employs an experimental or quasi- 
experimental design to measure the 
impact of the intervention on the 
achievement of students who are 
economically disadvantaged or limited 
English proficient, or who have 
disabilities, and on the number of these 
students who are prepared to participate 
in gifted and talented education 
programs. 

Note: Evaluation methods using an 
experimental design are best for determining 
the effectiveness of interventions. Thus, 
when feasible, the project must use an 
experimental design under which 

participants (e.g., students, teachers, 
classrooms, or schools) are randomly 
assigned to participate in the project 
activities being evaluated or to a control 
group that does not participate in the project 
activities being evaluated. 

If random assignment is not feasible, the 
project may use a quasi-experimental design 
with carefully matched comparison 
conditions. This alternative design attempts 
to approximate a randomly assigned control 
group by matching participants with non- 
participants having similar pre-intervention 
characteristics. 

Executive Order 12866 
This notice of proposed priority has 

been reviewed in accordance with 
Executive Order 12866. Under the terms 
of the order, we have assessed the 
potential costs and benefits of this 
regulatory action. 

The potential costs associated with 
the notice of proposed priority are those 
resulting from statutory requirements 
and those we have determined as 
necessary for administering this 
program effectively and efficiently. 

In assessing the potential costs and 
benefits—both quantitative and 
qualitative—of this notice of proposed 
priority, we have determined that the 
benefits of the proposed priority justify 
the costs. 

We have also determined that this 
regulatory action does not unduly 
interfere with State, local, and tribal 
governments in the exercise of their 
governmental functions. 

Intergovernmental Review 
This program is subject to Executive 

Order 12372 and the regulations in 34 
CFR part 79. One of the objectives of the 
Executive order is to foster an 
intergovernmental partnership and a 
strengthened federalism. The Executive 
order relies on processes developed by 
State and local governments for 
coordination and review of proposed 
Federal financial assistance. 

This document provides early 
notification of our specific plans and 
actions for this program. 

Electronic Access to This Document 
You may view this document, as well 

as all other Department of Education 
documents published in the Federal 
Register, in text or Adobe Portable 
Document Format (PDF) on the Internet 
at the following site: http://www.ed.gov/ 
news/fedregister. 

To use PDF you must have Adobe 
Acrobat Reader, which is available free 
at this site. If you have questions about 
using PDF, call the U.S. Government 
Printing Office (GPO), toll free, at 1– 
888–293–6498; or in the Washington, 
DC, area at (202) 512–1530. 

Note: The official version of this document 
is the document published in the Federal 
Register. Free Internet access to the official 
edition of the Federal Register and the Code 
of Federal Regulations is available on GPO 
Access at: http://www.gpoaccess.gov/nara/ 
index.html. 

(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Number 84.206A Jacob K. Javits Gifted and 
Talented Students Education Program) 

Program Authority: 20 U.S.C. 7253. 

Dated: January 9, 2008. 
Kerri L. Briggs, 
Assistant Secretary for Elementary and 
Secondary Education. 
[FR Doc. E8–450 Filed 1–11–08; 8:45 am] 
BILLING CODE 4000–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Office of Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services; List of 
Correspondence 

AGENCY: Department of Education. 
ACTION: List of Correspondence from 
July 1, 2007 through September 30, 
2007. 

SUMMARY: The Secretary is publishing 
the following list pursuant to section 
607(f) of the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act, as amended 
by the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Improvement Act of 2004 
(IDEA). Under section 607(f) of IDEA, 
the Secretary is required, on a quarterly 
basis, to publish in the Federal Register 
a list of correspondence from the U.S. 
Department of Education (Department) 
received by individuals during the 
previous quarter that describes the 
interpretations of the Department of 
IDEA or the regulations that implement 
IDEA. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Melisande Lee or JoLeta Reynolds. 
Telephone: (202) 245–7468. 

If you use a telecommunications 
device for the deaf (TDD), you may call 
the Federal Relay Service (FRS) at 1– 
800–877–8339. 

Individuals with disabilities may 
obtain a copy of this notice in an 
alternative format (e.g., Braille, large 
print, audiotape, or computer diskette) 
on request to the contact persons listed 
under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
CONTACT. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
following list identifies correspondence 
from the Department issued from July 1, 
2007 through September 30, 2007. 
Included on the list are those letters that 
contain interpretations of the 
requirements of IDEA and its 
implementing regulations, as well as 
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letters and other documents that the 
Department believes will assist the 
public in understanding the 
requirements of the law and its 
regulations. The date of and topic 
addressed by a letter are identified, and 
summary information is also provided, 
as appropriate. To protect the privacy 
interests of the individual or individuals 
involved, personally identifiable 
information has been deleted, as 
appropriate. 

Part A—General Provisions 

Section 602—Definitions 

Topic Addressed: Child With a 
Disability 
Æ Letter dated September 11, 2007 to 

individual (personally identifiable 
information redacted), regarding how a 
local educational agency (LEA) may 
address the needs of a child with a 
neurological impairment. 

Part B—Assistance for Education of All 
Children With Disabilities 

Section 612—State Eligibility 

Topic Addressed: Methods of Ensuring 
Services 
Æ Letter dated August 15, 2007 to 

New Zion, South Carolina Walker 
Gamble Elementary School official 
Carlette Morris, regarding use of an 
interagency agreement between a State 
or LEA and a State Medicaid Agency to 
obtain Medicaid reimbursement for 
Medicaid-covered services included in a 
Medicaid-eligible child’s individualized 
education program (IEP). 

Topic Addressed: Confidentiality of 
Education Records 
Æ Letter dated August 7, 2007 to U.S. 

Representative Bill Shuster, restating 
the Department’s policy that test 
protocols that do not contain personally 
identifiable information are not 
education records under either Part B of 
IDEA or the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act. 

Topic Addressed: Children With 
Disabilities Enrolled by Their Parents in 
Private Schools 
Æ Letter dated August 22, 2007 to 

Arizona Director of Exceptional Student 
Services Colette Chapman, clarifying 
that children with disabilities placed by 
their parents in for-profit private 
schools are not considered ‘‘parentally- 
placed private school children with 
disabilities,’’ are not included in the 
proportionate share calculation and are 
not eligible for equitable services. 
Æ Letter dated August 29, 2007 to 

Scarsdale, New York Public Schools 
Director of Special Education Dr. 

Michael Mendelson, regarding 
requirements in Part B of IDEA that are 
applicable to the LEA where the private 
school is located when a child with a 
disability is parentally-placed in a 
special education private school. 

Section 614—Evaluations, Eligibility 
Determinations, Individualized 
Education Programs, and Educational 
Placements 

Topic Addressed: Evaluations and 
Reevaluations 

Æ Letter dated July 27, 2007 to 
individual (personally identifiable 
information redacted) and letter dated 
September 24, 2007 to Mountain Plains 
Regional Resource Center Co-Director 
Dr. Carol Massanari, regarding the use of 
response to intervention in evaluating 
children suspected of having specific 
learning disabilities. 
Æ Letter dated August 15, 2007 to 

Lehigh University Professor Perry A. 
Zirkel, regarding an LEA’s use of its 
State-adopted criteria for determining 
whether a child has a specific learning 
disability. 
Æ Letter dated September 5, 2007 to 

New York Attorney Edward J. 
Sarzynski, regarding whether written 
parental consent is required for all 
evaluations that are not standardized 
tests administered to all students. 

Topic Addressed: Individualized 
Education Programs 

Æ Letter dated July 19, 2007 to 
individual (personally identifiable 
information redacted), regarding a 
State’s proposed rules that relate to IEPs 
and other requirements in Part B of 
IDEA. 
Æ Letter dated August 24, 2007 to 

Disability Rights Advocate Pat Kelly, 
clarifying when benchmarks or short- 
term objectives must be included in the 
IEPs of students with disabilities who 
take alternate assessments aligned to 
alternate achievement standards. 
Æ Letter dated August 22, 2007 to 

Trident Literacy Association official 
Suzy Arents, clarifying that a private 
nonprofit entity has no obligation to 
develop IEPs for students with 
disabilities who have withdrawn from 
the public school program and who seek 
literacy services directly from a private 
nonprofit entity. 
Æ Letter dated September 4, 2007 to 

Conway, Arkansas Public Schools 
official Linda Boswell, regarding 
translation of IEP documents into a 
parent’s native language. 

Section 615—Procedural Safeguards 

Topic Addressed: Impartial Due Process 
Hearing 

Æ Letter dated August 15, 2007 to 
Kentucky School Boards Association 
Senior Attorney Teresa T. Combs, 
regarding the Department’s current 
position on whether a local school 
district must or may file a request for a 
due process hearing to attempt to force 
a child to return to the district’s special 
education program when the parent 
revokes consent for the child’s receipt of 
special education and related services. 
Æ Letter dated August 15, 2007 to 

Massachusetts Bureau of Special 
Education Appeals Director Richard E. 
Connelly, clarifying the obligation of a 
public agency to provide, at no cost, a 
copy of a written, or at the option of the 
parent, an electronic, verbatim record 
from a due process hearing, even though 
the applicable appeal period has 
expired. 
Æ Letter dated September 11, 2007 to 

Puerto Rico Special Education Attorney 
Roberto Maldonado, clarifying that any 
party to a due process hearing has the 
right to either a free copy of a written, 
or at the option of the parents, an 
electronic, verbatim record of the 
hearing, not both. 

Topic Addressed: Maintenance of 
Current Educational Placement 

Æ Letter dated September 4, 2007 to 
Partnership for Children’s Rights 
Attorney Michael D. Hampden, 
clarifying the applicability of the 
requirement regarding a child’s status 
during the pendency of administrative 
or judicial proceedings in a single tier 
or two-tier due process system when no 
subsequent appeals are filed. 

Topic Addressed: Protections for 
Children Not Yet Eligible for Special 
Education and Related Services 

Æ Letter dated September 5, 2007 to 
individual (personally identifiable 
information redacted), clarifying 
whether an expulsion hearing may 
occur before the hearing officer 
determines whether the LEA had 
knowledge that the child was a child 
with a disability. 

Part C—Infants and Toddlers With 
Disabilities 

Section 636—Individualized Family 
Service Plan 

Topic Addressed: Content of Plan 

Æ Letter dated September 4, 2007 to 
Florida Early Steps Bureau Chief Janice 
M. Kane, clarifying the State’s obligation 
to provide any services that meet the 
Part C definition of early intervention 
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1 To Revise, Codify and Enact Without 
Substantive Change Certain General and Permanent 
Laws, Related to Transportation, as Subtitles II, III, 
and V-X of Title 49, U.S.C., ‘‘Transportation’’, and 
to Make Other Technical Improvements in the 
Code, 49 U.S.C. 60502 (July 5, 1994). This Act 
repealed the Department of Energy Act sections 306 
and 402 under which the Interstate Commerce 
Commission transferred to, and vested, in the 
Commission all functions and authority over rates 
or charges for the transportation of oil by pipeline 
including the establishment of valuations of any 
such pipeline, Pub. L. 95–91 (August 4, 1977). 

2 Revision of FERC Form No. 73, Oil Pipeline 
Data Filing Instructions, Order No. 656, 70 FR 
34343 (June 14, 2005), FERC Statutes and 
Regulations, Regulations Preambles 2001–2005 
¶ 31,183(2005). 

services through an individualized 
family service plan (IFSP). 
Æ Letter dated September 24, 2007 to 

individual (personally identifiable 
information redacted), clarifying that 
the IFSP Team, which includes the 
child’s parents, makes an individualized 
determination of whether a particular 
method of providing services is needed 
for a child to achieve the outcomes in 
the child’s IFSP. 

Other Letters That Do Not Interpret Idea 
But May Be of Interest to Readers 

Topic Addressed: Transition 

Æ Rehabilitation Services 
Administration Information 
Memorandum RSA–IM–07–08, 
regarding a comprehensive transition 
program that uses a variety of activities 
and innovative approaches to expose 
transition-age youth with disabilities 
(ages 14 to 24) to careers in science, 
technology, engineering, and math and 
other technology-based professions. 

Electronic Access to This Document 

You may view this document, as well 
as all other Department of Education 
documents published in the Federal 
Register, in text or Adobe Portable 
Document Format (PDF) on the Internet 
at the following site: http://www.ed.gov/ 
news/fedregister/index.html. 

To use PDF you must have Adobe 
Acrobat Reader, which is available free 
at this site. If you have questions about 
using PDF, call the U.S. Government 
Printing Office (GPO), toll free, at 1– 
888–293–6498; or in the Washington, 
DC, area at (202) 512–1530. 

Note: The official version of this document 
is the document published in the Federal 
Register. Free Internet access to the official 
edition of the Federal Register and the Code 
of Federal Regulations is available on GPO 
Access at: http://www.gpoaccess.gov/nara/ 
index.html. 

(Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Number 84.027, Assistance to States for 
Education of Children with Disabilities) 

Dated: January 8, 2008. 

Tracy R. Justesen, 
Assistant Secretary for Special Education and 
Rehabilitative Services. 
[FR Doc. E8–448 Filed 1–11–08; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4000–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 

Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission 

[Docket No. IC08–73–000; FERC Form 73] 

Commission Information Collection 
Activities, Proposed Collection; 
Comment Request; Extension 

January 4, 2008. 
AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: In compliance with the 
requirements of section 3506(c)(2)(a) of 
the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 
(Pub. L. No. 104–13), the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (Commission) is 
soliciting public comment on the 
specific aspects of the information 
collection described below. 
DATES: Comments on the collection of 
information are due by March 10, 2008. 
ADDRESSES: Copies of sample filings can 
be obtained from the Commission’s Web 
site: (http://elibrary.ferc.gov/idmws/ 
search/fercgensearch.asp) by entering, 
in the Docket Number block, the prefix 
‘‘DO’’ together with the fiscal year of the 
filing, followed by an asterisk (for 
example: DO07*), or from the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission, Attn: 
Michael Miller, Office of the Executive 
Director, ED–34, 888 First Street, NE., 
Washington, DC 20426. Comments may 
be filed either in paper format or 
electronically. Those parties filing 
electronically do not need to make a 
paper filing. For paper filings, the 
original and 14 copies of such 
comments should be submitted to the 
Office of the Secretary, Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission, 888 First 
Street, NE., Washington, DC 20426 and 
refer to Docket No. IC08–73–000. 

Documents filed electronically via the 
Internet must be prepared in 
WordPerfect, MS Word, Portable 
Document Format or ASCII format. To 
file the document, access the 
Commission’s Web site at http:// 
www.ferc.gov and choose the 
Documents and Filings tab, click on E- 
filing, then follow the instructions 
given. First time users will need to 
establish a user name and password. 
The Commission will send an automatic 
acknowledgement to the sender’s e-mail 
address upon receipt of comments. 

All comments may be viewed, printed 
or downloaded remotely via the Internet 
through FERC’s homepage using the 
eLibrary link. For user assistance, 
contact ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov or 
202–502–6652 (toll free at 1–866–208– 
3676). E-mail the Public Reference 
Room at public.referenceroom@ferc.gov. 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Michael Miller may be reached by 
telephone at (202) 502–8415, by fax at 
(202) 273–0873, and by e-mail at 
michael.miller@ferc.gov. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
information collected under the 
requirements of FERC Form 73 ‘‘Oil 
Pipelines Service Life Data’’ (OMB No. 
1902–0019) is used by the Commission 
to establish oil pipeline property 
depreciation rates based on the physical 
properties of a pipeline’s equipment. 
Congress gave the Commission 
jurisdiction over oil pipeline rates, 
charges and valuations in Pub. L. 103– 
272, sec. 60502 (1994).1 The 
Commission’s regulations governing 
FERC Form No. 73 can be found in 18 
CFR § 357.3. The filing instructions are 
available online at http://www.ferc.gov/ 
docs-filing/hard-fil.asp, under the Oil 
tab. 

Depreciation rates are a factor in a 
pipeline’s transportation cost of service. 
As such, companies are required to 
submit Form No. 73 when requesting 
Commission approval of: (1) The 
establishment of depreciation rates for 
new pipeline equipment or (2) revision 
of previously approved depreciation 
rates, when the depreciation is based on 
the physical properties of the pipeline 
company’s equipment. The Commission 
may also request an oil pipeline to 
submit a Form No. 73 during a rate 
investigation. 

On May 27, 2005, in Order No. 656, 
the Commission amended the Form No. 
73 instructions to allow for filing on a 
diskette in a spreadsheet file format, 
eliminated the filing requirement for 
utility codes, which were no longer 
used by the Commission, and updated 
the filing instructions to delete 
references to outdated filing formats.2 

Action: The Commission is requesting 
approval and three-year extension of the 
current expiration date. There are no 
changes to the information that is 
collected on Form 73. This is a 
mandatory information collection 
requirement. 
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